## **S&P Dow Jones** Indices

A Division of S&P Global

# S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters

March 2025

#### **Table of Contents**

Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control Indices		Global Thematic Risk Control Indices	
S&P Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control Indices	2	Dow Jones Brookfield Global Infrastructure Daily Risk Control Indices	39
		S&P Asia Infrastructure Risk Control Indices	40
Global Risk Control Indices		S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Risk Control Indices	41
S&P Global BMI Risk Control Indices	3	S&P Global Clean Energy Risk Control Indices	42
		S&P Global Infrastructure Risk Control Indices	43
Developed Market Risk Control Indices		S&P Global Natural Resources Risk Control Indices	44
S&P 500 Risk Control Indices	4	S&P Latin America Infrastructure Risk Control Indices	45
S&P 500 Capex Efficiency Risk Control Indices	5	S&P 500 Buyback Risk Control Indices	46
S&P 500 Riskcasting Risk Control Indices	6	Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Risk Control Indices	47
S&P 500 Futures Risk Control Indices	7	S&P Global 1200 Dividend Stability Low Volatility Risk Control Indices	48
S&P 500 Low Volatility Riskcasting Risk Control Indices	8		
S&P Europe 350 Riskcasting	9		
S&P Global 1200 Riskcasting	10	Commodities Risk Control Indices	
S&P 500 Average Risk Control Indices	11	S&P GSCI Risk Control Indices	49
S&P/TSX 60 Risk Control Indices	12	S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Risk Control Indices	50
S&P/TSX Composite Banks Risk Control Indices	13	S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Alpha Light Energy Risk Control Indices	51
S&P Europe 350 Risk Control Indices	14		
S&P Asia 50 Risk Control Indices	15	Deduction Risk Control Indices	
S&P/ASX 200 Risk Control Indices	16	S&P Global 100 Deduction Risk Control Indices	52
S&P/JPX Risk Control Indices	17		
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Risk Control Indices	18		
S&P 500 Low Volatility Risk Control Indices	19	Special Notes	53
S&P 500 Low Volatility (CAD) Hedged Risk Control Indices	20		
S&P U.S. Retiree Spending Index	21		
S&P 500 Low Volatility Rate Response Risk Control Indices	22	Disclaimer	54
S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Risk Control Indices	23		
S&P Nordic LargeCap Risk Control Indices	24		
S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped Risk Control Indices	25		
S&P 500 Growth Value Rotator Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER	26		
S&P 500 ESG Risk Control Indices	27		
S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG-Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Daily Risk Control Indices	28		
S&P Transatlantic 100 ESG Select Equal Weight Risk Control Indices	29		
Emerging Market Risk Control Indices			
S&P BRIC 40 Risk Control Indices	30		
S&P BRIC High Yield Risk Control Indices	31		
S&P BRICT Risk Control Indices	32		
S&P Latin America 40 Risk Control Indices	33		
S&P/BMV Mexico Risk Control Indices	34		
S&P Southeast Asia 40 Risk Control Indices	35		
S&P Africa 40 Risk Control Indices	36		
S&P Access Africa Risk Control Indices	37		
S&P Next Emerging 40 Risk Control Indices	38		
S&P Emerging Asia 40 Risk Control Indices	39		

#### **S&P Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control Indices**

Dynamic Rebalancing Indices

The S&P Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control Indices utilize an existing S&P index, plus an overlying mathematical algorithm designed to control the level of risk of the underlying index by establishing a specific volatility target and dynamically adjusting the exposure to the S&P index based on its historical volatility.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Minimum Daily Allocation Change	Maximum Daily Allocation Change	End of Month Rebalancing	Launch Date
	Net Total Return	18%	100%	3-Month T-bill (USD)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	10%	NA	No	5-Jan-12
S&P Latin America 40 Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 18% Index	Underlying Index		S&P Latin Am	nerica 40 Net Tota	al Return: SPTRL	.40T (USD)							
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Net Total Ret	urn: SPLAM18N	(USD)								
	Excess Return	4%	100%	0%	Average	Daily	1 day	20 days	40 days	5%	NA	No	23-Jan-20
S&P 500 Futures Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 4% Index (USD) ER	Underlying Index		S&P 500 Futu	ıres Excess Retu	rn Index: SPXFP	(USD)							
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		NA										
	Net Total Return	10%	100%	ESTR(1)	Average	Daily	1 day	20 days	60 days	10%	25%	No	19-Feb-20
S&P 500 NTR Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 10% Index (EUR)	Underlying Index		S&P 500 EUF	R Net Total Retur	n Index: 500EUR	NTR (EUR)							
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return:	SPXDR1ET				Excess Return: 5	PXDR1EE				
	Price Return	40%	100%	SOFR	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	10%	NA	No	4-Feb-22
S&P Bitcoin Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 40% Index (CET Close) (USD)	Underlying Index		S&P Bitcoin II	ndex (CET Close)	) (USD): SPBTC0	CC							
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return:	SPBTDR4T				Excess Return: 5	PBTDR4E				
	Price Return	40%	100%	SOFR	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	10%	NA	No	4-Feb-22
S&P Ethereum Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 40% Index (CET Close) (USD)	Underlying Index		S&P Ethereu	m Index (CET Clo	ose) (USD): SPET	THCC							
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return:	SPETDR4T				Excess Return: S	SPETDR4E				
	Price Return	40%	100%	SOFR	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	10%	NA	No	26-Sep-22
S&P Cryptocurrency Top 10 Dynamic Rebalancing Risk Control 40% Index (Singapore Close) (USD)	Underlying Index		S&P Cryptoco	urrency Top 10 In	dex (Singapore C	Close) (USD) SPCC	108						
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return:	SPCTDR4T				Excess Return: S	SPCTDR4E				

<sup>(1)</sup> ESTR was available starting from Oct. 1, 2019. Prior to that date, hypothetical value of ESTR was calculated using EONIA less a fixed 8.5 basis point. (\*) EONIA interest rate used prior to November 22, 2021.

## **S&P Global BMI Risk Control Indices**

**Global Indices** 

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Global BMI	Net Total Re	eturn: SGUN (USD)								
S&P Global BMI Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	10%	100%	3-Month T-bill (USD)	Exponentially weighted	5 day	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Feb-14
10% USD Net Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBMI10N (USD)					Excess Return: SP	BMI10E (USD)		
S&P Global BMI Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	12%	100%	3-Month T-bill (USD)	Exponentially weighted	5 day	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Feb-14
12% USD Net Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBMI12N (USD)					Excess Return: SP	BMI12E (USD]		
S&P Global BMI Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	15%	100%	3-Month T-bill (USD)	Exponentially weighted	5 day	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Feb-14
15% USD Net Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBMI15N (USD)					Excess Return: SP	BMI15E (USD)		
S&P Global BMI Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	5%	100%	3-Month T-bill (USD)	Exponentially weighted	5 day	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Feb-14
5% USD Net Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SN</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBMI5N (USD)					Excess Return: SP	BMI5E (USD)		

#### **S&P 500 Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P 500 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 index and a cash component accruing interest, that dynamically adjust to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a

relative basis.											
Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Total Re	turn: SPTR (USE	)   Price Return:	: SPX (USD)							
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	10-Sep-09
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT5UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXT5UE (USD)		1
S&P 500 Average Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Price Return  BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	5%	100% Price Return: S	SOFR +.13088**	Average	Daily	2 days	20 days Excess Return: S	40 days	Daily	4-Apr-13
		6%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially	D-II-	0.4	94%	97%	D-II.	3-Mar-25
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 6% Index	Total Return				weighted	Daily	2 days	*	51.74	Daily	3-Mar-25
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: 5	PXTR6UT (USD)	Francostistic			Excess Return: S	PARCEUE (USD)		
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 7% Index	Total Return	7%	100%	SOFR +.13088**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	Daily	25-Jun-14
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT7UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXT7UE (USD)		
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 7.5%	Total Return	7.5%	150%	SOFR +.13088**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	1 day	94%	97%	Daily	3-May-13
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXRC7T (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXRC7E (USD)		
ORD FOR Delle Blak Courted 600 Index	Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	3-Feb-25
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 8% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXTR8UT (USD)	-			Excess Return: S	PXRC8UE (USD)		
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 10%	Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	13-May-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT10UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXT10UE (USD)		
S&P 500 PR Daily Risk Control 10%	Price Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Apr-19
Index (USD)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PX10UP (USD)							
S&P 500 Average Daily Risk Control 10% Index	Price Return	10%	100%	SOFR +.13088**	Average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	4-Apr-13
10% index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Price Return: S	PXAV10P (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXAV10E (USD)		
S&P 500 Volatility Plus Risk Control	Price Return	Dynamic Volatility Target****	200%	N/A	Exponentially weighted*****	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Mar-22
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Price Return: S	PXVPRCU (USD)							
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 12%	Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Apr-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT12DT (USD)			1	Excess Return: S	PXT12DE (USD)		
S&P 500 Monthly Risk Control 12% Index	Total Return	12%	150%	Federal Funds	Maximum (20 day, 100 day) Moving Avg.	Daily	2 days	20 days	100 days	Monthly aligned with option expiry (3rd Friday each month)	10-Sep-09
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT12UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXT12UE (USD)		
S&P 500 PR Daily Risk Control 18%	Price Return	18%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Apr-19
Index (USD)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PX18UP (USD)							
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 14%	Total Return	14%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	3-Mar-25
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Total Return: S	PXT14UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PXT14UE (USD)		
S&P 500 Daily Risk Control 15% Index	Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	10-Sep-09
(*) Overnight USD LIBOR was used	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T		ı otal keturn: S	PXT15UT (USD)				Excess Return: S	PATTOUE (USD)		

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021
(\*\*) 3M LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021
(\*\*\*) 8M LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021
(\*\*\*) Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021
(\*\*\*\*) target volatility is realized volatility of underlying index<sub>12</sub>+10%

<sup>(\*\*\*\*\*)</sup> the volatility measure is determined by taking the average of the Short-Term Volatility and Long-Term Volatility

5

## **S&P 500 Capex Efficiency Risk Control Indices**

**Global Indices** 

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long- Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date		
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Capex Effi	ciency Total Retur	n: SPXCAPUT (USD)										
S&P 500 Capex Efficiency Daily Risk Control 10% USD	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	4-May-15		
Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Total Return: SPXC10	UT (USD)		Excess Return: SPXC10UE (USD)							
	Net Total Return	15%	150% SOFR + .02		Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	4-May-15		
Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Total Return: SPXC15	UT (USD)				Excess Return: SP	(C15UE (USD]				
Efficiency Daily Risk Control 5% USD	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	4-May-15		
Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Total Return: SPXC5U	T (USD)				Excess Return: SP	(C5UE (USD)				

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters March 2025

#### **S&P 500 Futures Risk Control Indices**

#### **Developed Market Indices**

7

The S&P 500 Futures Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Futures index and a cash component accruing interest (for any total return versions). The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date		Decay Factor Long- Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index: S&P 500 Futures Excess Return Index: SPXFP (USD)												
S&P 500 Futures Volatility Plus Daily Risk Control Index	Price Return	Dynamic Volatility Target*	200%	N/A	Exponentially weighted**	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-22	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>S™</sup>	Tickers:	Excess Return: S	SPXFVPRE (USD)								

<sup>(\*)</sup> target volatility is realized volatility of underlying index<sub>t-2</sub>+10%

<sup>(\*\*)</sup> the volatility measure is determined by taking the average of the Short-Term Volatility and Long-Term Volatility

## **S&P 500 Average Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P 500 Average Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. For the volatility value, we use the higher of the two simple averages of the underlying index's volatility computed over 20 or 40 trailing days.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Total	Return: SP1	FR (USD)   Price Return: SPX (USD)								
S&P 500 Average Daily Risk Control	Price Return	5%	100%	SOFR +.13088**	Average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	4-Apr-13
	BLOOMBERG	<sup>SM</sup> Tickers:	Price Return: SPXAV5P (USD)					Excess Return: SPX	AV5E (USD)		
S&P 500 Average Daily Risk Control	Price Return	10%	100%	SOFR +.13088**	Average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	4-Apr-13
	BLOOMBERG	<sup>SM</sup> Tickers:	Price Return: SPXAV10P (USD)					Excess Return: SPX	AV10E (USD)		

<sup>(\*\*) 3</sup>M LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P/TSX 60 Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P/TSX 60 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P/TSX 60 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index:	S&P/TSX 60 Tota	l Return: TX60	AR (CAD)									
S&P/TSX 60 Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Total Return	5%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-12	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> 1	ickers:	Total Return: SPTC5TR (CAD)	)				Excess Return: SPT	C5ER (CAD)			
S&P/TSX 60 Daily Risk Control 8% Index	Total Return	8%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-12	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> 1	ickers:	Total Return: SPTC8TR (CAD)					Excess Return: SPT	C8ER (CAD)		<u>'</u>	
S&P/TSX 60 Daily Risk Control 10% Index	Total Return	10%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-12	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> 1	ickers:	Total Return: SPTC10TR (CAI	D)				Excess Return: SPT	C10ER (CAD)			
S&P/TSX 60 Daily Risk Control 12% Index	Total Return	12%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-12	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> 1	ickers:	Total Return: SPTC12TR (CAI	D)				Excess Return: SPT	C12ER (CAD)			
S&P/TSX 60 Daily Risk Control 15% Index	Total Return	15%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Apr-12	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> 1	ickers:	Total Return: SPTC15TR (CAI	D)				Excess Return: SPT	C15ER (CAD)			
S&P/TSX 60 Carbon Efficient Daily Risk Control	Total Return	10%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-20	
10% ER Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers: Total Return: RC60 (CAD)							Excess Return: RE60 (CAD)				

## **S&P/TSX Composite Banks Risk Control Indices**

#### **Developed Market Indices**

The S&P/TSX Composite Banks Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P/TSX Composite Banks index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P/TSX Compo	site Index Ba	nks Total Return								
S&P/TSX Composite Banks Risk Control 5% Index	Total Return	5%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	4-Aug-20
muex	Tickers:		Total Return: TXCBR	C5				Excess Return: TX	CBRC5E		
S&P/TSX Composite Banks Risk Control 8%	Total Return	8%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	4-Aug-20
Index	Tickers:		Total Return: TXCBR	C8				Excess Return: TX	CBRC8E		

#### **S&P Europe 350 Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P Europe 350 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Europe 350 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns with short and long-term measures of volatility used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

ndex Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short- Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long- Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Jnderlying Index:	S&P Europe 350	Net Total F	Return: SPTR350N (EUR)   S&P Europe	350 Total Return: S	PTR350E (EUR)	Price Return: SPE	UROU (USD)				
S&P Europe 350 Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	5%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	10-Sep-09
5% Index	BLOOMBERG	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU5EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPE	USEE (EUR)		
S&P Europe 350	Net Total Return	8%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
aily Risk Control % Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU8EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPEL	J8EE (EUR)		
6&P Europe 350 Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	10%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	10-Sep-09
0% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU10EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPEU	J10EE (EUR)		
S&P Europe 350 Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	12%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
2% Index	BLOOMBERG	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU12EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPEL	J12EE (EUR)		
6&P Europe 350 Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	15%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	10-Sep-09
5% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU15EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPEU	J15EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350 Paily Risk Control	Net Total Return	18%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
8% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPEU18EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPEU	J18EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350	Total Return	5%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
R Daily Risk ontrol 5% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET5ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	「SEE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350 R Daily Risk	Total Return	8%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
Control 8% Index	BLOOMBERG	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET8ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	「8EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350 R Daily Risk	Total Return	10%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
ontrol 10% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET10ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	10EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350	Total Return	12%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
2% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET12ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	12EE (EUR)		
6&P Europe 350	Total Return	15%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
aily Risk Control 5% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SA</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET15ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	15EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350	Total Return	18%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-17
Paily Risk Control 8% Index	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Total Return: SPET18ET (EUR)					Excess Return: SPET	18EE (EUR)		
&P Europe 350 R Daily Risk	Price Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Apr-19
ontrol 10% Index JSD)	BLOOMBERG	Tickers:	Price Return: SPE10UP (USD)								
&P Europe 350 R Daily Risk	Price Return	18%	150%	SOFR +.13088**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Apr-19
ontrol 18% Index JSD)	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Price Return: SPE18UP (USD)								
&P Europe 350 R Daily Risk	Price Return	10%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	3-Jul-19
Control 10% Index EUR)	BLOOMBERG	Tickers:	Price Return: SPE10EP (EUR)								
S&P Europe 350 PR Daily Risk	Price Return	18%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	3-Jul-19
Control 18% Index EUR)	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Price Return: SPE18EP (EUR)								

(\*) EONIA interest rate used prior to November 22, 2021.

(\*\*) Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P Asia 50 Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P Asia 50 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Asia 50 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Asia 50 Net To	tal Return: SI	PAS50NT (USD)   SPAS50EN	(EUR)							
S&P Asia 50 Daily Risk Control 5%	Net Total Return	5%	150%	or Euribor** weighted					97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Net Total Return: SPRA5UT (I	USD)   SPRA5EN (	EUR)		Excess Return: SPRA5UE (USD)   SPRA5EE (EUR)				
S&P Asia 50 Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088 or Euribor**	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Net Total Return: SPRA10UT	(USD)   SPRA10E	N (EUR)			Excess Return:	SPRA10UE (USD	)   SPRA10EE (EUF	₹)
S&P Asia 50 Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR +.13088 or Euribor**	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ticl	kers:	Net Total Return: SPRA15UT (USD)   SPRA15EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPRA15UE (USD)   SPRA15EE (EUR)			

<sup>(\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

16

## **S&P/ASX 200 Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P/ASX 200 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P/ASX 200 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted in order to target a level of volatility indicated below. If the risk level reaches a threshold that is too high, the exposure to the index is decreased in order to maintain the target volatility. If the risk level is too low, then the indices will employ leverage to maintain the targeted level of volatility. Realized historical volatility is calculated using a simple 100-day moving average.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P/ASX 200 Total Return	ı: ASA51 (AUD)   S	S&P/ASX 200 Price	e Return: AS51 (AU	D)						
S&P/ASX 200 Daily Risk Control 5%	Total Return	5%	150%	RBA Overnight Cash Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	10-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return: SP/	AX5AT (AUD)				Excess Return:	SPAX5AE (AUD)		
	Total Return	10%	150%	RBA Overnight Cash Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	10-Sep-09
S&P/ASX 200 Daily Risk Control 10%	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return: SPA	AX10AT (AUD)				Excess Return:	SPAX10AE (AUD	)	
Index	Total Return	10%	150%	3-month rolling Euribor	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	15-Aug-12
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return: SPA	AX10ET(EUR)				Excess Return:	SPAX10EE (EUR	)	
S&P/ASX 200 Daily Risk Control 12%	Total Return	12%	150%	RBA Overnight Cash Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	9-May-11
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return: SPA	AX12AT (AUD)				Excess Return:	SPAX12AE (AUD	)	
S&P/ASX 200 Daily Risk Control 15% Index	Total Return	15%	150%	RBA Overnight Cash Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	10-Sep-09
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Total Return: SPA	AX15AT (AUD)				Excess Return:	SPAX15AE (AUD	)	

## **S&P/JPX Risk Control Indices**

#### **Developed Market Indices**

The S&P/JPX Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the TOPIX index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted in order to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using a simple 100-day moving average.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	Topix Total Retu	ırn Index									
S&P/JPX Risk Control 5% Total	Total Return	5%	100%	Uncollateralized Overnight Call Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	17-Dec-15
Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SJXDR5T					Excess Return: S	SJXDR5E		
S&P/JPX Risk Control 10% Total	Total Return	10%	100%	Uncollateralized Overnight Call Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	17-Dec-15
Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SJXDR10T					Excess Return: \$	SJXDR10E		
S&P/JPX Risk Control 15% Total Return Index	Total Return	15%	100%	Uncollateralized Overnight Call Rate	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	N/A	N/A	Daily	17-Dec-15
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	<sup>1</sup> Tickers:	Total Return: SJXDR15T					Excess Return:	SJXDR15E		

## **S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Dividend	d Aristocrats	Total Return: SPDAUDT (U	SD)   SPDAEUT (E	UR)   SPDASKT (SE	K)					
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Daily Risk Control 5%	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR +.13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Γickers:	Total Return: SPXD5UN (U	SD)   SPXD5EN (E	UR)			Excess Return:	SPXD5UE (USD)	SPXD5EE (EUR)	
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Daily Risk Control 8% Index	Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Γickers:	Total Return: SPXD8UN (U	SD)   SPXD8EN (E	UR)   SPXD8SN (SE	K)		Excess Return:	SPXD8UE (USD)	SPXD8EE (EUR)   S	SPXD8SE (SEK)
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Daily Risk Control 10%	Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Γickers:	Total Return: SPXD10UN (	USD)   SPXD10EN	(EUR)   SPXD10SN	(SEK)		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPXD10UE (USD)	SPXD10EE (EUR)	SPXD10SE
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Daily Risk Control 12%	Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Γickers:	Total Return: SPXD12UN (	USD)   SPXD12EN	(EUR)   SPXD12SN	(SEK)		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPXD12UE (USD)	SPXD12EE (EUR)	SPXD12SE
S&P 500 Dividend Aristocrats Daily Risk Control 15%	Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	100-day moving average	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Γickers:	Total Return: SPXD15UN (	USD)   SPXD15EN	(EUR)   SPXD15SN	(SEK)		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPXD15UE (USD)	SPXD15EE (EUR)	SPXD15SE

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021 instead of SOFR +.13088

## **S&P 500 Low Volatility Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P 500 Low Volatility Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Low Volatility Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Low	Volatility	Total Return: SP5LVIT (USD)   Price Re	eturn: SP5LVI (USI	O)						
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 5%	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPLV5UT (USD)   SPLV5	SET (EUR)   SPLV5	SST (SEK)			Excess Return:	SPLV5UE (USD)	SPLV5EE (EUR)   S	PLV5SE (SEK)
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 8%	Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPLV8UT (USD)   SPLV8	BET (EUR)   SPLV8	BST (SEK)			Excess Return:	SPLV8UE (USD)	SPLV8EE (EUR)   S	PLV8SE (SEK)
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 10%	Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPLV10UT (USD)   SPLV	/10ET (EUR)   SPL	V10ST (SEK)			Excess Return: (SEK)	SPLV10UE (USD)	SPLV10EE (EUR)	SPLV10SE
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 12%	Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPLV12UT (USD)   SPLV	/12ET (EUR)   SPL	V12ST (SEK)			Excess Return: (SEK)	SPLV12UE (USD)	SPLV12EE (EUR)	SPLV12SE
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 15%	Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11
ndex	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	Э <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPLV15UT (USD)   SPLV	/15ET (EUR)   SPL	V15ST (SEK)			Excess Return: (SEK)	SPLV15UE (USD)	SPLV15EE (EUR)	SPLV15SE
6&P 500 Low	Price Return	5%	100%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	14-Nov-16
5% USD Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	Э <sup>SM</sup>	Price Return: SPLVP5UP					Excess Return:	SPLVP5UE		

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021 instead of SOFR +.13088

## S&P 500 Low Volatility (CAD) Hedged Risk Control Indices

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P 500 Low Volatility (CAD) Hedged Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Low Volatility (CAD) Hedged Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Low V	olatility (CA	D) Hedged Total Return: Si	P5LVCTH (CAD)   P	rice Return: SP5I	LVICH (CAD)					
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 5% CAD Hedged Index	Total Return	5%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
	BLOOMBERG <sup>S™</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPXL5HCT	(CAD)				Excess Return:	SPXL5ECE (CAD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 8% CAD Hedged Index	Total Return	8%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
	BLOOMBERG <sup>S™</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPXL8HCT	(CAD)				Excess Return: \$	SPXL8ECE (CAD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 10% CAD Hedged Index	Total Return	10%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Total Return: SPX10HCT	(CAD)				Excess Return: \$	SPX10CCE (CAD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility PR Daily Risk Control 5% CAD Hedged Index	Total Return	5%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
-	BLOOMBERGS	Tickers:	Price Return: SPXL5HCP	(CAD)				Excess Return: S	SPXL5HCE (CAD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility PR Daily Risk Control 8% CAD Hedged Index	Total Return	8%	150%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
	BLOOMBERG <sup>S™</sup>	Tickers:	Price Return: SPXL8HCP	(CAD)				Excess Return: S	SPXL8HCE (CAD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility PR Daily Risk Control 10% CAD Hedged Index	Price Return	10%	100%	CAONREPO Index (Bank of Canada Overnight Repo Rate CORRA) + 0.455 *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Apr-19
-	BLOOMBERG <sup>SI</sup>	<sup>4</sup> Tickers:	Price Return: SPX10HCP	(CAD)				Excess Return: \$	SPX10HCE (CAD)		

<sup>(\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month CDOR was used prior to July 1, 2024

## **S&P U.S. Retiree Spending Index**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P U.S. Retiree Spending Index is designed to measure the performance of a balanced, multi-asset investment strategy across equities and fixed income. The equity exposure in the index targets economic sectors that are expected to be affected by retiree spending due to a changing U.S. demographic and the fixed income exposure helps to reduce the equity risk and overall portfolio volatility.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long- Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index: S&P U.S. Retiree Spending Composite Index (USD)												
S&P U.S. RETIREE SPENDING INDEX	Total Return	5%	100%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	31-Aug-11	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPRE	TIRE								

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

## S&P 500 Low Volatility Rate Response Risk Control Indices

#### **Developed Market Indices**

The S&P 500 Low Volatility Rate Response Risk Control 7% is designed to measure 100 companies in the S&P 500 that have exhibited low volatility, while reducing negative exposure to changes in interest rates. Stocks with a high positive sensitivity to interest rates are expected to have higher relative returns when interest rates rise and conversely, lower relative returns when interest rates fall. The index also dynamically rebalances exposure to maintain a 7% volatility target.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancin g Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date		
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Low	00 Low Volatility Rate Response Index: SP5LVRUP (USD)											
S&P 500 Low Volatility Daily Rate Response Risk Control 7%	Price Return	7%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	11-Mar-16		
	BLOOMBER( Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SP5LVRUT				-	Excess Return: §	SPXLVR7E				

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

## S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Risk Control Indices

#### **Developed Market Indices**

The S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Low	Volatility	High Dividend Total Return: SP5	SLVHDT (USD)   Pi	rice Return: SP5	LVHD (USD)					
S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Daily	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-16
Risk Control 5% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPXLD5UT (USD	)				Excess Return: \$	SPXLD5UE (USD	)	
S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Daily	Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .02963**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-16
Risk Control 10%	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPXL10UT (USD)					Excess Return: \$	SPXL10UE (USD)		
S&P 500 Low Volatility High	Price Return	10%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-16
Dividend Risk Control 10% Index (EUR)	BLOOMBER( Tickers:	∃ <sup>SM</sup>	Price Return: SPXLP1EP					Excess Return: S	SPXLP1EE		
S&P 500 Low Volatility High Dividend Daily	Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .02963**	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-16
Risk Control 15% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:		Total Return: SPXL15UT (USD)		-		-	Excess Return: S	SPXL15UE (USD)		

<sup>(\*\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

<sup>(\*)</sup> EURO LIBOR interest rate used prior to November 22, 2021.

## **S&P Nordic LargeCap Risk Control Indices**

**Developed Market Indices** 

The S&P Nordic LargeCap Daily Risk Control 10% Index represents a portfolio consisting of the S&P Nordic LargeCap Index and a cash component accruing interest. The index is dynamically adjusted to target a 10% level of volatility. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the index to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Nordic Lar	geCap Net Tota	al Return: SBPRNLUN (USD)   SBPR	NLEN (EUR)   SBPRN	LSN (SEK)						
S&P Nordic LargeCap Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
Index	BLOOMBERGSA	<sup>1</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPND10UN (USD	)   SPND10EN (EUR)	SPND10SN (SE	()		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPND10UE (USD)	SPND10EE (EUR)	SPND10SE
S&P Nordic LargeCap Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
Index	BLOOMBERGSN	<sup>1</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPND15UN (USD	)   SPND15EN (EUR)	SPND15SN (SE	()		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPND15UE (USD)	SPND15EE (EUR)	SPND15SE
S&P Nordic LargeCap Daily Risk Control 18%	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Aug-10
Index	BLOOMBERGSN	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPND18UN (USD	)   SPND18EN (EUR)	SPND18SN (SE	()		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPND18UE (USD)	SPND18EE (EUR)	SPND18SE

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021 instead of SOFR +.13088

## **S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped Risk Control Indices**

#### **Developed Market Indices**

The S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped Daily Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index: S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped Index Net Total Return: SPILMCEN (EUR)												
S&P Italy LargeMidCap Capped Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	100%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	14-May-12	
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBERG	™ Tickers:	Net Total Return: SF	PILM10T (EUR)				Excess Return: \$	SPILM10E (EUR)			

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021 instead of SOFR +.13088

## S&P 500 Growth Value Rotator Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P 500 Growth Value Rotator Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER measures the performance of the S&P 500 Growth Value Rotator Index in excess of the overnight USD LIBOR. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 5%. The realized short- and long-term volatility calculations are reset at each rebalancing, using the current allocation combinations for historical volatility calculations, as opposed to the realized volatility of the actual risk-controlled index.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Growth Val	ue Rotator Index (USI	D)									
S&P 500 Growth Value Rotator Daily Risk Control	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Aug-19
5% Index (USD) ER	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tick	cers:	Total Return: N/A						Excess Return:	SPXGR5UE (US	SD)	

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

## S&P 500 ESG Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P 500 ESG Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER measures the performance of the S&P 500 ESG Index in excess of the overnight USD SOFR. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 5%. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short- and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index: S&P 500 ESG Index (USD)												
S&P 500 ESG Daily Risk Control 5% Index (USD) ER	Total Return	5%	150%	Overnight USD SOFR *	Exponentially weighted	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	20-Sep-21
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tick	ers:	Total Return: SPXES	SU5T (USD)					Excess Return:	SPXESU5E (US	D)	

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to August 22, 2018

## S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG-Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 15% Index

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG-Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 15% Index measures the performance of the S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG-Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Index in excess of the ESTR. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 15%. Volatility is calculated as a simple average of the underlying index's volatility computed over 20 days.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index: S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG-Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Index												
S&P Transatlantic 40 ESG- Momentum Tilted Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 15% Index	Total Return	15%	150%	ESTR *	Average	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	20 days	20 days	Daily	20-Dec-21
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ticl	kers:	Total Return: SPTT1	5ET					Excess Return:	SPTT15EE		

<sup>(\*)</sup> EONIA was used prior to 10/1/2019

## S&P Transatlantic 100 ESG Select Equal Weight Risk Control 17% Index

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P Transatlantic 100 ESG Select Equal Weight Risk Control 17% Index measures the performance of the S&P Transatlantic 100 ESG Select Equal Weight Index and a cash component accruing interest. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 17%. Volatility is calculated as a simple average of the underlying index's volatility computed over 40 days.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Transatlantic 1	00 ESG Select Equal	Weight Index									
S&P Transatlantic 100 ESG Select Equal Weight Risk Control 17% Index	Total Return	17%	150%	ESTR *	Average	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	40 days	40 days	Daily	27-Feb-23
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tick	kers:	Total Return: SPTE	ERET	•				•	-	•	

<sup>(\*)</sup> EONIA was used prior to 10/1/2019

## S&P EuroUSAJapan 100 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned Select Daily Risk Control 17% Index

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P EuroUSAJapan 100 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned Select Daily Risk Control 17% Index Index measures the performance of the S&P EuroUSAJapan 100 Net Zero 2050 Paris-Aligned Select Index and a cash component accruing interest. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 17%. Volatility is calculated as a simple average of the underlying index's volatility computed over 40 days.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P EuroUSAJapar	n 100 Net Zero 2050 P	aris-Aligned Select In	ndex								
S&P EuroUSAJapan 100 Net Zero 2050 Paris- Aligned Select Daily Risk Control 17% Index	Total Return	17%	150%	ESTR *	Average	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	40 days	40 days	Daily	29-Jan-24
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tic	kers:	Total Return: SPEJX	(RET		:			-		:	

<sup>(\*)</sup> EONIA was used prior to 10/1/2019

## S&P Transatlantic 100 Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 17% Index

**Developed Market Indices** 

S&P Transatlantic 100 Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 17% Index measures the performance of the S&P Transatlantic 100 Equal Weight Index and a cash component accruing interest. The index is dynamically adjusted to maintain a target volatility of 17%. Volatility is calculated as a simple average of the underlying index's volatility computed over 20 days.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Volatility Reference Index	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Transatlantic 1	00 Equal Weight Index	1									
S&P Transatlantic 100 Equal Weight Daily Risk Control 17% Index	Total Return  BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ticl	17%	150% Total Return: SPTT	ESTR *	Average	Daily	Selected Underlying Index	2 days	20 days	20 days	Daily	25-Mar-24

<sup>(\*)</sup> EONIA - .085 was used prior to 10/1/2019

## **S&P BRIC 40 Risk Control Indices**

**Emerging Market Indices** 

The S&P BRIC 40 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P BRIC 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P BRIC 40	Net Total Re	turn: SPTRBRIC (USD)   SPTRBRIE (EUR)								
S&P BRIC 40 Daily Risk Control 5%	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR+.13088 or Euribor	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG	SM Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPTR5UN (USD)   SPTR5EN	(EUR)				Excess Return: S	SPTR5UE (USD)	SPTR5EE (EUR)	
S&P BRIC 40 Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR+.13088 or Euribor	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG	SM Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPTR10UN (USD)   SPTR10E	N (EUR)		-		Excess Return: \$	SPTR10UE (USD)	SPTR10EE (EUR)	:
S&P BRIC 40 Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR+.13088 or Euribor	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG	SM Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPTR15UN (USD)   SPTR15E	N (EUR)				Excess Return: S	SPTR15UE (USD)	SPTR15EE (EUR)	
S&P BRIC 40 Risk Control 18% Index	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR+.13088 or Euribor	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
			Net Total Return: SPTR18UN (USD)   SPTR18E					Excess Return: 9	SPTR18UE (USD)	SPTR18EE (EUR)	•

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P BRIC High Yield Risk Control Indices**

**Emerging Market Indices** 

The S&P BRIC High Yield Risk Control Index represent portfolios consisting of the S&P BRIC High Yield index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short- Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P BRIC High	Yield Inde	x Net Total Return: SPBRHYUN (US	SD)   SPBRHYEN (I	EUR)						
S&P BRIC High Yield Daily Risk	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-May-12
Control 5% Index	BLOOMBERG	™Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPB5RUN (USD	)   SPB5REN (EUR	R)			Excess Return: SPB5R	UE (USD)   SPB5R	EE (EUR)	
S&P BRIC High Yield Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-May-12
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBERG	™Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPB10RUN (US	D)   SPB10REN (E	UR)			Excess Return: SPB10	RUE (USD)   SPB10	DREE (EUR)	-
S&P BRIC High Yield Daily Risk	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-May-12
Control 15% Index	BLOOMBERG	™Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPB15RUN (US	D)   SPB15REN (E	UR)	·		Excess Return: SPB15	RUE (USD)   SPB15	SREE (EUR)	
S&P BRIC High Yield Daily Risk	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-May-12
Control 18% Index	BLOOMBERG	™Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPB18RUN (US	D)   SPB18REN (E	UR)			Excess Return: SPB18	RUE (USD)   SPB18	BREE (EUR)	

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P BRICT Risk Control Indices**

#### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P BRICT Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P BRICT index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P BRICT Net	t Total Return	: SPBRCTUN (USD)   SPBRCT	EN (EUR)   SPBRO	CTSN (SEK)						
S&P BRICT Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Nov-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SI</sup>	M Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPBR10UN	(USD)   SPBR10EI	N (EUR)   SPBR1	0SN (SEK)	,	Excess Return: S (SEK)	SPBR10UE (USD	)   SPBR10EE (EUR)	SPBR10SE
S&P BRICT Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Nov-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SI</sup>	M Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPBR15UN	(USD)   SPBR15EI	N (EUR)   SPBR1	5SN (SEK)		Excess Return: S (SEK)	SPBR15UE (USD	)   SPBR15EE (EUR)	SPBR15SE
S&P BRICT Daily Risk Control 18%	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	15-Nov-10
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SI</sup>	M Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPBR18UN	(USD)   SPBR18EI	N (EUR)   SPBR1	8SN (SEK)		Excess Return: 5 (SEK)	SPBR18UE (USD	)   SPBR18EE (EUR)	SPBR18SE

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P Latin America 40 Risk Control Indices**

**Emerging Market Indices** 

The S&P Latin America 40 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Latin America 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Latin America	a 40 Net Tota	al Return: SPTRL40N (US	SD)   SPLACENT (I	EUR)						
S&P Latin America 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 5% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Net Total Return: SPLM	5UN (USD)   SPLM	15EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SP	LM5UE (USD)   SP	LM5EE (EUR)	
S&P Latin America 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Net Total Return: SPLM	10UN (USD)   SPL	M10EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SP	LM10UE (USD)   S	PLM10EE (EUR)	
S&P Latin America 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 15% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Net Total Return: SPLM	15UN (USD)   SPL	M15EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SP	LM15UE (USD)   S	PLM15EE (EUR)	
S&P Latin America 40 Risk Control	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
18% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	ickers:	Net Total Return: SPTR	L18N (USD)	-	-		Excess Return: SP	TRL18E (USD)	-	

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P/BMV Mexico Risk Control Indices**

#### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P/BMV Mexico Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P/BMV IPC and S&P/BMV IRT indices and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P/BMV IPC (F	Price Return): (M	XN)								
S&P/BMV IPC Daily Risk Control 5%	Price Return	5%	100%	28 Day TIIE	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-18
Index (MXN)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPMP0	C5MP (MXN)				Excess Return: S	SPMPC5ME (MXN	1)	
S&P/BMV IPC Daily Risk Control 10%	Price Return	10%	100%	28 Day TIIE	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-18
Index (MXN)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPMP	IOMP (MXN)				Excess Return: S	SPMP10ME (MXN	)	
Underlying Index:	S&P/BMV IRT (1	otal Return): (M	XN)								
S&P/BMV IRT Daily Risk Control 5%	Total Return	5%	100%	28 Day TIIE	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-18
Index (MXN)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPMR	Г5МТ (MXN)				Excess Return: S	SPMRT5ME (MXN	)	
S&P/BMV IRT Daily Risk Control 10%	Total Return	10%	100%	28 Day TIIE	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	23-Aug-18
Index (MXN)	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPMT	OMT (MXN)				Excess Return: S	SPMT10ME (MXN)	)	

## **S&P Southeast Asia 40 Risk Control Indices**

#### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P Southeast Asia 40 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Southeast Asia 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Southea	st Asia 40	Net Total Return: SPSEA	44UN (USD)   SPS	E4UEN (EUR)	SPSEA4SN (	SEK)				
S&P Southeast Asia 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 5% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPSE5	UN (USD)   SPSE	5EN (EUR)			Excess Return: \$	SPSE5UE (USD)	SPSE5EE (EUR)	
S&P Southeast Asia 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>sм</sup>	Net Total Return: SPSE1	0UN (USD)   SPSI	E10EN (EUR)			Excess Return: \$	SPSE10UE (USD)	)   SPSE10EE (EU	R)
S&P Southeast Asia 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 15% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPSE1	5UN (USD)   SPSI	E15EN (EUR)		Excess Return: \$	SPSE15UE (USD)	)   SPSE15EE (EU	R)	
S&P Southeast Asia 40 Risk	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	16-Sep-09
Control 18% Index	BLOOMBER(	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPSEA	18N (USD)   SPSI	E18SN (SEK)			Excess Return: \$	SPSEA18E (USD)	)   SPSE18SE (SE	K)

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P Africa 40 Risk Control Indices**

#### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P Africa 40 Risk Control Index represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Africa 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Africa 40	) Net Tota	Return: SPAFRUN (USD)   S	PAFREN (EUR)							
S&P Africa 40 Daily Risk Control 5%	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Feb-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	∃ <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAF5UN (	USD)   SPAF5EN	(EUR)			Excess Return: S	SPAF5UE (USD)	SPAF5EE (EUR)	
S&P Africa 40 Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Feb-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAF10UN	(USD)   SPAF10E	N (EUR)			Excess Return: S	SPAF10UE (USD)	SPAF10EE (EUR)	
S&P Africa 40 Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Feb-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	∃ <sup>sм</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAF15UN	(USD)   SPAF15E	N (EUR)			Excess Return: S	SPAF15UE (USD)	SPAF15EE (EUR)	
S&P Africa 40 Daily Risk Control 18%	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	22-Feb-11
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	LOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ickers:  Net Total Return: SPAF18UN (USD)   SPAF18EN (EUR)  Excess Return: SPAF18UE (USD)   SPAF18EE (EUR)									
(***) Rolling 3-mon	th USD LIBC	R was us	sed instead of SOFR +.1308	38 prior to Decen	nber 20, 2021						

## **S&P Access Africa Risk Control Indices**

**Emerging Market Indices** 

The S&P Access Africa Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Access Africa index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Access	Africa Net	Total Return: SPAAUN (l	JSD)   SPAAEN (E	UR)   SPAASN	(SEK)					
S&P Access Africa Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	14-Jun-11
10% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAA1	OUN (USD)   SPA	\10EN (EUR)   \$	SPAA10SN (SEK)	)	Excess Return: S (SEK)	SPAA10UE (USD)	SPAA10EE (EUR)	SPAA10SE
S&P Access Africa Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	14-Jun-11
15% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAA1	5UN (USD)   SPA	A15EN (EUR)   \$	SPAA15SN (SEK)	)	Excess Return: \$ (SEK)	SPAA15UE (USD)	SPAA15EE (EUR)	SPAA15SE
S&P Access Africa Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	14-Jun-11
18% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	∃ <sup>sм</sup>	Net Total Return: SPAA1	8UN (USD)   SPA	A18EN (EUR)   \$	SPAA18SN (SEK)	)	Excess Return: \$ (SEK)	SPAA18UE (USD)	SPAA18EE (EUR)	SPAA18SE
S&P Access Africa Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	20%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	9-Apr-12
20% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:		Net Total Return: SPAA2				Excess Return: S	SPAA20SE (SEK)			

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P Next Emerging 40 Risk Control Indices**

### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P Next Emerging 40 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Next Emerging 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancin g Date	Decay Factor Short- Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Next Eme	rging 40 Net T	otal Return: SPN40EU (USD)   SPN40	DEE (EUR)   SPN4	DEG (GBP)						
S&P Next Emerging 40 Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or BBA LIBOR***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	11-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Net Total Return: SPN10UN (USD)   SPN10EN (EUR)   SPN10			P)		Excess Return: SPN10	DUE (USD)   SPN10I	EE (EUR)   SPN10GE	(GBP)
S&P Next Emerging 40 Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or BBA LIBOR***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	11-Aug-11
Index	BLOOMBERG	SM Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPN15UN (USD)	SPN15EN (EUR)	SPN15GN (GB	P)		Excess Return: SPN15	5UE (USD)   SPN15I	EE (EUR)   SPN15GE	(GBP)
S&P Next Emerging 40 Daily Risk Control 18% Index	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or BBA LIBOR***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	11-Aug-11
	BLOOMBERG	™ Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPN18UN (USD)	SPN18EN (EUR)	SPN18GN (GB	P)		Excess Return: SPN18	BUE (USD)   SPN18I	EE (EUR)   SPN18GE	(GBP)

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

41

## **S&P Emerging Asia 40 Risk Control Indices**

### **Emerging Market Indices**

The S&P Emerging Asia 40 Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Emerging Asia 40 index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Emergir	ng Asia 40	Net Total Return: SPEM400	JN (USD)   SPEM40Ei	N (EUR)   SPEM	140SN (SEK)					
S&P Emerging Asia 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Jul-11
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBER Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPEA10L	JN (USD)   SPEA10EN		Excess Return: SPEA10UE (USD)   SPEA10EE (EUR)   SPEA10SE (SEK)					
S&P Emerging Asia 40 Daily Risk	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Jul-11
Control 15% Index	BLOOMBER Tickers:	G <sup>sm</sup>	Net Total Return: SPEA15U	JN (USD)   SPEA15EN	I (EUR)   SPEA	15SN (SEK)		Excess Return: (SEK)	SPEA15UE (USD)	)   SPEA15EE (EUR)	SPEA15SE
S&P Emerging Asia 40 Daily Risk Control 18% Index	Net Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR +.13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Jul-11
	BLOOMBER Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPEA18U	UN (USD)   SPEA18EN (EUR)   SPEA18SN (SEK)			Excess Return: SPEA18UE (USD)   SPEA18EE (EUR)   SPEA18SE (SEK)				

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **Dow Jones Brookfield Global Infrastructure Daily Risk Control Indices**

**Global Thematic Indices** 

The index builds on the Dow Jones Brookfield Global Infrastructure Index methodology by overlying mathematical algorithms that maintain index risk profiles at specific volatility targets. The indices dynamically Rebalancing exposure to the Dow Jones Brookfield Global Infrastructure Index to maintain target risk at 5%, 10%, or 15% profiles.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	Dow Jones Br	ookfield G	lobal Infrastructure Index: F	Price Return: DJGB	I						
Dow Jones Brookfield Global	Price Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	19-Feb-15
Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 5%	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	SM	rice Return: DJBGI5P (USD)					Excess Return: [	DJBGI5E (USD)		
Dow Jones Brookfield Global	Price Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	19-Feb-15
Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 10%	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	SM	Price Return: DJBGI10P (l	JSD)				Excess Return: [	DJBGI10E (USD)		
Dow Jones Brookfield Global Infrastructure Daily BL	Price Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .02963*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 day	94%	97%	Daily	19-Feb-15
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:							Excess Return: [	DJBGI15E (USD)		

<sup>(\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

**S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters** 

**March 2025** 

### **S&P Asia Infrastructure Risk Control Indices**

### **Global Thematic Indices**

The S&P Asia Infrastructure Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Asia Infrastructure Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short- Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long- Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Asia Infras	structure In	dex Net Total Return: SPA	TINFN (USD)   SPA	ATINEN (EUR)   S	SPATINSN (SEK)	)				
S&P Asia Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
5% Index	BLOOMBERGS	<sup>™</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPAT5L	JN (USD)   SPAT5E	EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SPAT5	UE (USD)   SPAT5EE	(EUR)	
S&P Asia Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
10% Index	BLOOMBERGS	<sup>M</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPAT10	UN (USD)   SPAT1		Excess Return: SPAT10UE (USD)   SPAT10EE (EUR)					
S&P Asia Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
12% Index	BLOOMBERGS	<sup>M</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPAT12	UN (USD)   SPAT1	2EN (EUR)   SP		Excess Return: SPAT12	2UE (USD)   SPAT12E	EE (EUR)   SPAT12S	SE (SEK)	
S&P Asia Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
15% Index	BLOOMBERGS	<sup>M</sup> Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPAT15	UN (USD)   SPAT1	5EN (EUR)   SP		Excess Return: SPAT15UE (USD)   SPAT15EE (EUR)   SPAT15SE (SEK)				

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Risk Control Indices**

**Global Thematic Indices** 

The S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Risk Control Index represents a portfolio consisting of the S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Index and a cash component accruing interest. The index is dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index: S	S&P Emerging M	larket Intras	structure Index Net Tota	ıl Return: SPGEIFE	ON (USD)   SPG	EIFEN (EUR)					
S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	25-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPG	E10UN (USD)   SF		Excess Return: SPGE10UE (USD)   SPGE10EE (EUR)					
S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	25-Sep-09
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPG	SE15UN (USD)   SF	PGE15EN (EUR	)		Excess Return: SF	PGE15UE (USD)   S	SPGE15EE (EUR)	
S&P Emerging Market Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 20%	Net Total Return	20%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	25-Sep-09
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPG	E20UN (USD)   SF	PGE20EN (EUR	)		Excess Return: SF	PGE20UE (USD)   S	SPGE20EE (EUR)	

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters March 2025

## **S&P Global Clean Energy Risk Control Indices**

**Global Thematic Indices** 

45

The S&P Global Clean Energy Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Global Clean Energy Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns based on a simple daily-moving average. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Global Clea	n Energy Index	Net Total Return: SPG1	CEDN (USD)   SPGTCE	EN (EUR)						
S&P Global Clean Energy Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .02963** or ESTR*	Maximum (20 day, 40 day) moving average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	13-Jan-10
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPGC	SUN (USD)   SPGC5EN (	(EUR)			Excess Return: SP	GC5UE (USD)   SP	GC5EE (EUR)	
S&P Global Clean Energy Daily Risk	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .02963** or ESTR*  Maximum (20 day, 40 day) Daily 2 day moving average			2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	13-Jan-10
Control 10% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPGC	10UN (USD)   SPGC10E		Excess Return: SPGC10UE (USD)   SPGC10EE (EUR)					
S&P Global Clean Energy Daily Risk Control 12% Index	Net Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .02963** or ESTR*	Maximum (20 day, 40 day) moving average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	13-Jan-10
Control 12/6 Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPGC	12UN (USD)   SPGC12E	N (EUR)			Excess Return: SP	GC12UE (USD)   SI	PGC12EE (EUR)	
S&P Global Clean	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .02963** or ESTR*	Maximum (20 day, 40 day) moving average	Daily	2 days	20 days	40 days	Daily	13-Jan-10
Energy Daily Risk	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers: Net Total Return: SPGC15UN (USD)   SPGC15EN (EUR)							Excess Return: SP6	GC15UE (USD)   SI	PGC15EE (EUR)	

<sup>(\*)</sup> EURO LIBOR interest rate used prior to November 22, 2021.

<sup>(\*\*)</sup> Overnight USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

### **S&P Global Infrastructure Risk Control Indices**

### **Global Thematic Indices**

The S&P Global Infrastructure Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Global Infrastructure Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Global II	nfrastructu	ıre Index: SPGTINNT (USD	)   SPGTINNE (EU	R)						
S&P Global Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 5%	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	Э <sup>sм</sup>	Net Total Return: SPGT5UN (USD)   SPGT5EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SPGT5UE (USD)   SPGT5EE (EUR)					
S&P Global Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 10%	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:		Net Total Return: SPGT10UN (USD)   SPGT10EN (EUR)			Excess Return: SPGT10UE (USD)   SPGT10EE (EUR)					
S&P Global Infrastructure Risk	Net Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	17-Nov-08
Control 12% Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Net Total Return: SPGT12	UN (USD)   SPGT	12EN (EUR)	,		Excess Return: S	SPGT12UE (USD	)   SPGT12EE (EUR)	
S&P Global Infrastructure Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088 or Euribor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	25-Sep-09
Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Net Total Return: SPGT15UN (USD)   SPGT15EN (EUR)					Excess Return: SPGT15UE (USD)   SPGT15EE (EUR)					

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

**S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters** 

**March 2025** 

### **S&P Global Natural Resources Risk Control Indices**

### **Global Thematic Indices**

The S&P Global Natural Resources Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Global Natural Resources Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Volatility is calculated as a function of historical returns that uses exponential weightings to give more significance to recent observations. In addition, short and long-term measures of volatility are used to cause the indices to deleverage quickly, but increase exposure more gradually on a relative basis.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Global Natu	ral Resource	es Index Net Total Retu	rn: SPGNRUT (US	D)   SPGNRET (	EUR)   SPGNRSN	(SEK)				
S&P Global Natural Resources Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
5% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPG	GN5UN (USD)   SP		Excess Return: SP0	GN5UE (USD)   SPG	N5EE (EUR)			
S&P Global Natural Resources Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
10% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPC	GN10UN (USD)   S		Excess Return: SPGN10UE (USD)   SPGN10EE (EUR)					
S&P Global Natural Resources Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
12% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPC	GN12UN (USD)   S	PGN12EN (EUR	)   SPGN12SN (SE	ζ)	Excess Return: SP0	GN12UE (USD)   SPO	GN12EE (EUR)   SP	GN12SE (SEK)
S&P Global Natural Resources Daily Risk Control	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Weekly	2 days	94% Decay Factor	97% Decay Factor	Daily	22-Feb-10
15% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Net Total Return: SPC	GN15UN (USD)   S	PGN15EN (EUR	<b>(</b> )	Excess Return: SPGN15UE (USD)   SPGN15EE (EUR)   SPGN15SE (SEK)				

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters March 2025

### **S&P Latin America Infrastructure Risk Control Indices**

#### **Global Thematic Indices**

48

The S&P Latin America Infrastructure Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P Latin America Infrastructure Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short- Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index:	S&P Latin Americ	a Infrastructure	Index TR: SPLAIN	UN (USD)   SPLAI	NEN (EUR)   SP	LAINSN (SEK)						
S&P Latin America Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-11	
8% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	Tickers:	Net Total Return: S	SPLI8UN (USD)   S	PLI8EN (EUR)	SPLI8SN (SEK)		Excess Return: SPLI8	UE (USD)   SPLI8E	E (EUR)   SPLI8SE	(SEK)	
S&P Latin America Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-11	
10% Indov	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	Tickers:	Net Total Return: S	SPLI10UN (USD)	SPLI10EN (EUR	R)   SPLI10SN (SE	<)	Excess Return: SPLI1	0UE (USD)   SPLI1	0EE (EUR)   SPLI10	OSE (SEK)	
S&P Latin America Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Total Return	12%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-11	
12% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	Tickers:	Net Total Return: S	SPLI12UN (USD)	SPLI12EN (EUR	R)   SPLI12SN (SE	<)	Excess Return: SPLI12UE (USD)   SPLI12EE (EUR)   SPLI12SE (SEK)				
S&P Latin America Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-11	
15% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	Tickers:	Net Total Return: S	SPLI15UN (USD)	SPLI15EN (EUR	R)   SPLI15SN (SE	<)	Excess Return: SPLI1	5UE (USD)   SPLI1	5EE (EUR)   SPLI1	SSE (SEK)	
S&P Latin America Infrastructure Daily Risk Control	Total Return	18%	150%	SOFR + .13088, Euribor, or Stibor***	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	28-Sep-11	
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> T	Tickers:	Net Total Return: S	SPLI18UN (USD)	SPLI18EN (EUR	R)   SPLI18SN (SE	⟨)	Excess Return: SPLI1	8UE (USD)   SPLI1	8EE (EUR)   SPLI18	BSE (SEK)	

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

## **S&P 500 Buyback Risk Control Indices**

### **Global Thematic Indices**

The S&P 500 Buyback Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P 500 Buyback Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P 500 Buybac	ck Index Tota	al Return: SPBUYUT (U	SD)   SPBUYST (S	EK)   Price Ret	urn: SPBUYUP (U	SD)   SPBUYSP (S	SEK)			
S&P 500 Buyback Daily Risk Control	Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR +.13088 or Stibor***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Jun-13
5% Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBUY5U	JT (USD)   SPBUY:		Excess Return: SPBUY5UE (USD)   SPBUY5SE (SEK)					
S&P 500 Buyback Daily Risk Control 8% Index	Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR +.13088 or Stibor***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Jun-13
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup>	Tickers:	Total Return: SPBUY8U	JT (USD)   SPBUY	8ST (SEK)	Excess Return: SPBUY8UE (USD)   SPBUY8SE (SEK)					

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used instead of SOFR +.13088 prior to December 20, 2021

S&P Dow Jones Risk Control Indices Parameters March 2025 50

### **Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Risk Control Indices**

### **Global Thematic Indices**

The Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Index and a cash component accruing interest. The indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date			
Underlying Index:	Dow Jones U.S. Real	Estate Index	Net TR: DJUSRET (USD)											
Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Daily	Net Total Return	5%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	20-Jun-13			
Risk Control 5% USD Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ticke	ers:	Total Return: DJUSR5T	(USD)				Excess Return: DJU	JSR5E (USD)					
Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Daily	Net Total Return	8%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	20-Jun-13			
Real Estate Daily Risk Control 8% USD Total Return	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers: Total Return: DJUSR8T (USD)								Excess Return: DJUSR8E (USD)					
Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Daily	Net Total Return	10%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	20-Jun-13			
Risk Control 10% USD Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Ticke	ers:	Total Return: DJUSR101	(USD)		Excess Return: DJU	JSR10E (USD)							
Dow Jones U.S. Real Estate Daily Risk Control 15%	Net Total Return	15%	150%	SOFR +.13088***	Decay	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	20-Jun-13			
USD Total Return Index	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers: Total Return: DJUSR15T (USD)							Excess Return: DJU	JSR15E (USD)					

<sup>(\*\*\*)</sup> Rolling 3-month USD LIBOR was used prior to December 20, 2021

### S&P Global 1200 Dividend Stability Low Volatility Daily Risk Control Indices

**Global Thematic Indices** 

The index builds on the S&P Global 1200 Dividend Stability Low Volatility Index methodology by overlying mathematical algorithms that maintain index risk profiles at specific volatility targets. The indices dynamically Rebalancing exposure to the S&P Global 1200 Dividend Stability Low Volatility Index to maintain target risk at 5%, 10%, or 15% profiles.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P Global 12	200 Dividend	Stability Low Volatility Ind	dex (EUR): SPDV	OGEP						
S&P Global 1200 Dividend Stability	Price Return	10%	150%	ESTR*	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	21-Jun-17
Low Volatility Daily Risk Control 10%	BLOOMBERG	SM Tickers:	Price Return: SPDVP1EI	P				Excess Return: SPI	OVP1EE		

<sup>(\*)</sup> EONIA interest rate used prior to November 22, 2021.

### **S&P GSCI Risk Control Indices**

#### **Commodities Indices**

The S&P GSCI Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P GSCI index and a cash component accruing interest. The exposure to the indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date		
Underlying Index:	S&P GSCI To	S&P GSCI Total Return: SPGSCITR (USD)											
S&P GSCI Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Total Return	5%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11		
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Total Return: SPGS5UT (USD)   SPGS5ET (EUR)							Excess Return: SPGS5UP (USD)   SPGS5EP (EUR)					
S&P GSCI Daily Risk Control 8%	Total Return	8%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11		
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPGS8UT (US	Excess Return: SPGS8UP (USD)   SPGS8EP (EUR)									
S&P GSCI Daily Risk Control 10% Index	Total Return	10%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11		
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers:  Total Return: SPGS10UT (USD)   SPGS10ET (EUR)							Excess Return: SPGS10UP (USD)   SPGS10EP (EUR)					
S&P GSCI Daily Risk Control 12% Index	Total Return	12%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11		
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPGS12UT (U	SD)   SPGS12ET (I		Excess Return: SPGS12UP (USD)   SPGS12EP (EUR)							

## **S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Risk Control Indices**

### **Commodities Indices**

The S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Risk Control Indices represent portfolios consisting of the S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll index and a cash component accruing interest. The exposure to the indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancing Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date	
Underlying Index:	S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Total Return: SPDYCITR (USD)											
S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Daily Risk Control 5% Index	Total Return	5%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11	
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPDY5UT (U	Excess Return: SPDY5UP (USD)   SPDY5EP (EUR)								
S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Daily Risk Control 8%	Total Return	8%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11	
Index	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPDY8UT (U	Excess Return: SPDY8UP (USD)   SPDY8EP (EUR)								
S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Daily Risk Control 10% Index	Total Return	10%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11	
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPDY10UT (l	otal Return: SPDY10UT (USD)   SPDY10ET (EUR)						Excess Return: SPDY10UP (USD)   SPDY10EP (EUR)		
S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Daily Risk Control 12% Index	Total Return	12%	150%	3-Month T-bill (USD), 3-Month Bubill (EUR)	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	1-Dec-11	
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return: SPDY12UT (U	Excess Return: SPDY12UP (USD)   SPDY12EP (EUR								

# S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Alpha Light Energy Risk Control Indices

### **Commodities Indices**

The exposure to the indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average. Short and long-term measures of volatility are taken using decay factors of 94% and 97%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility		Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Alpha Light Energy: SPDYALEP (USD)										
S&P GSCI Dynamic Roll Alpha Light Energy	Total Return	3%	150%	N/A	Exponentially weighted	Daily	2 days	94%	97%	Daily	30-Apr-13
Daily Risk Control 3% Index	BLOOMBERO Tickers:	3 <sup>SM</sup>	Total Return:	SPDALE3T (USD)	)			Excess Return: SPDALE3E (USD)			

### **S&P Global 100 Deduction Risk Control Indices**

### **Deduction Indices**

The exposure to the indices are dynamically adjusted to target a level of volatility indicated below. Realized historical volatility is calculated using an exponentially weighted average with an initial lookback period of 252 days. Short and long-term measures of volatility are measured using decay factors of 87.05% and 99.725%, respectively. In order to be conservative, the higher level of volatility is used in the risk control calculation. The deduction is 0.5% per annum. Both a deduction and non-deduction version of the index exist.

Index Name	Underlying Risk Index	Risk Control Level	Maximum Leverage	Interest Rate	Volatility Calculation	Return Frequency for Volatility	Lag to Rebalancin g Date	Decay Factor Short-Term Volatility	Decay Factor Long-Term Volatility	Rebalancing Frequency	Deduction	Launch Date
Underlying Index:	dex: S&P Global 100 ( C ): SPG100											
S&P Global 100 PR 5% Daily Risk Control 0.5% Deduction Index (USD) ER	Price Return	5%	150%	Federal Funds	Exponentially weighted	Daily	3 days	87.05%	99.725%	Daily	0.5% per annum	18-Sep-23
	BLOOMBERG <sup>SM</sup> Tickers: Excess Return: SPGLR5TE											
S&P Global 100 PR 5% Daily Risk Control Index (USD) ER	Price Return	5%	150%	Federal Funds	Exponentially weighted	Daily	3 days	87.05%	99.725%	Daily	None	18-Sep-23
	BLOOMBERG Tickers:	G <sup>sм</sup>	Excess Retui	n: SPGLRC5E								

## **Special Notes**

### 15% closure rule for calculating S&P Risk Control Indices

An S&P Risk Control index will not rebalance on days when 15% or more of the stocks in the underlying risk index are closed. See the S&P Index Mathematics Methodology for further details. This rule was implemented beginning February 2010 for existing indices. Therefore, indices launched prior to February 2010 will have the 15% rule implemented at the beginning of February 2010. Indices launched after February 2010 will only have the 15% rule applied on a going forward basis from the launch date of each index. The launch date for each index can be found in this S&P Risk Control Parameter document.

#### **Decimal Places Rounding**

Rounded to 3 decimal places from August 3, 1998 to August 31, 2010. From Sept 1, 2010 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Not rounded for history up until August 3, 2009. For August 3, 2009 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Rounded to 2 decimal places for entire history from November 1, 2004 to current.

Rounded to 2 decimal places for entire history to current.

### **Decimal Places Rounding**

Not rounded for history up until Jan 19, 1999. From Jan 20, 1999 to Sept 7, 1999, rounded to 2 decimal places. From Sept 8, 1999 to October 5, 1999, rounded to 3 decimal places. From Oct 6, 1999 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Not rounded for history up until Jan 19, 2009. From Jan 20, 2009 to Sept 7, 2009, rounded to 2 decimal places. From Sept 8, 2009 to August 31, 2010, rounded to 3 decimal places. From Sept 1, 2010 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Rounded to 2 decimal places for entire history to current.

### **Decimal Places Rounding**

Rounded to 4 decimal places for entire history from November 21, 2003 to August 31, 2010. From Sept 1, 2010 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Not rounded for history up until July 29, 2009. From July 30, 2009 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Not rounded for entire history from November 21, 2003 to August 31, 2010. From Sept 1, 2010 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Not rounded for history up until Jan 19, 2009. From Jan 20, 2009 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Rounded to 4 decimal places for entire history from November 15, 2002 to August 31, 2010. From Sept 1, 2010 to current, rounded to 2 decimal places.

Rounded to 2 decimal places for entire history to current.

#### **Decimal Places Rounding**

Rounded to 2 decimal places for entire history to current.

#### Disclaimer

#### Performance Disclosure/Back-Tested Data

Where applicable, S&P Dow Jones Indices and its index-related affiliates ("S&P DIW") defines various dates to assist our clients by providing transparency. The First Value Date is the first day for which there is a calculated value (either live or back-tested) for a given index. The Base Date is the date at which the index is set to a fixed value for calculation purposes. The Launch Date designates the date when the values of an index are first considered live: index values provided for any date or time period prior to the index's Launch Date are considered back -tested. S&P DJI defines the Launch Date as the date by which the values of an index are known to have been released to the public, for example via the company's public website or its data feed to external parties. For Dow Jones-branded indices introduced prior to May 31, 2013, the Launch Date (which prior to May 31, 2013, was termed "Date of introduction") is set at a date upon which no further changes were permitted to be made to the index methodology, but that may have been prior to the Index's public release date. Please refer to the methodology for the Index for more details about the index, including the manner in which it is rebalanced, the timing of such rebalancing, criteria for additions and deletions, as well as all index calculations. Information presented prior to an index's launch date is hypothetical back-tested performance, not actual performance, and is based on the index methodology in effect on the launch date. However, when creating back-tested history for periods of market anomalies or other periods of market anomalies or ot index is designed to capture. For example, market capitalization and liquidity thresholds may be reduced. In addition, forks have not been factored into the back-test data with respect to the S&P Cryptocurrency Indices. For the S&P Cryptocurrency Top 5 & 10 Equal Weight Indices, the custody element of the methodology was not considered; the back-test history is based on the index constituents that meet the custody element as of the Launch Date. Also, the treatment of corporate actions in back-tested performance may differ from treatment for live indices due to limitations in replicating index management decisions Back-tested performance reflects application of an index methodology and selection of index constituents with the benefit of hindsight and knowledge of factors that may have positively affected its performance, cannot account for all financial risk that may affect results and may be considered to reflect survivor/look ahead hias. Actual returns may differ significantly from, and be lower than, back-tested returns. Past performance is not an indication or guarantee of future results. Tvoically, when S&P DJI creates back-tested index data, S&P DJI uses actual historical constituent-level data (e.g., historical price, market capitalization, and corporate action data) in its calculations. As ESG investing is still in early stagges of development, certain datapoints used to calculate certain ESG indices may not be available for the entire desired period of back-tested history. The same data availability issue could be true for other indices as well. In cases when actual data is not available for all relevant historical periods, S&P DJI may employ a process of using "Backward Data Assumption" (or pulling back) of ESG data for the calculation of back-tested historical performance. "Backward Data Assumption" is a process that applies the earliest actual live data point available for an index constituent company to all prior historical instances in the index performance. For example, Backward Data Assumption inherently assumes that companies currently not involved in a specific business activity (also known as "product involvement") were never involved historically and similarly also assumes that companies currently involved in a specific business activity were involved historically too. The Backward Data Assumption allows the hypothetical back-test to be extended over more historical years than would be feasible using only actual data. For more information on "Backward Data Assumption" please refer to the FAQ. The methodology and factsheets of any index that employs backward assumption in the back-tested history will explicitly state so. The methodology will include an Appendix with a table setting forth the specific data points and relevant time periodfor which backward projected data was used. Index returns shown do not represent the results of actual trading of investable assets/securities. S&P DJI maintains the index and calculates the index and calculates the index not investment funds that are intended to track the performance of the Index. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause actual and back-tested performance of the securities/fund to be lower than the index performance shown. As a simple example, if an index returned 10% on a US \$100,000 investment for a 12-month period (or US \$10,000) and an actual asset-based fee of 1.5% was imposed at the end of the period on the investment plus accrued interest (or US \$1,650), the net return would be 8.35% (or US \$8,350) for the year. Over a three-year period, an annual 1.5% fee taken at year end with an assumed 10% return per year would result in a cumulative gross return of 33.10%, a total fee of US \$5,375, and a cumulative net return of 27.2% (or US \$27,200). Intellectual Property Notices/Disclaimer

© 2025 S&P Dow Jones Indices, All rights reserved, S&P, S&P, SDO, SPX, SPY, The 500, US 30, S&P 100, S&P COMPOSITE 1500, S&P 400, S&P MIDCAP 400, S&P MIDCAP 400, S&P SMALLCAP 600, S&P GLOBAL TITANS, DIVIDEND ARISTOCRATS, Select Sector, S&P MAESTRO S&P PRISM, S&P STRIDE, GICS, SPIVA, SPDR, INDEXOLOGY, ITraxx, iBoxx, ABX, ADBI, CDX, CMBX, MBX, MCDX, PRIMEX, HHPI, and SOVX are registered trademarks of S&P Global, Inc. ("S&P Global") or its affiliates. DOW J ONES, DJIA, THE DOW and DOW JONES INDUSTRIAL AVERAGE are trademarks of Dow Jones Trademark stogether with others have been licensed to S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC. Redistribution or reproduction in whole or in part are prohibited without written permission of S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC. This document does not constitute an offer of services in jurisdictions where S&P DJI does not have the necessary licenses. Except for certain custom index calculation services, all information provided by S&P DJI is impersonal and not tailored to the needs of any person, entity, or group of persons. S&P DJI receives compensation in connection with licensing its indices to third parties and providing custom calculation services. Past performance of an index is not an indication or guarantee of future results. It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Exposure to an asset class represented by an index may be available through investable instruments based on that index. S&P DJI does not sponsor, endorse, sell, promote or manage any investment through control that is offered by third parties and that seeks to provide an investment return based on the performance of any index. S&P DJI makes no assurance that investment products based on the index will accurately track index performance or provide positive investment returns. S&P DJI is not an investment advisor, commodity trading advisor, fiduciary, "promoter" (as defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended) or "expert" as enumerated within 15 U.S.C. § 77k(a), and S&P DJI makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in any such investment fund or other investment vehicle. A decision to invest in any such investment fund or other investment fund or other investment fund or other asset within an index is not a recommendation by S&P DJI to buy, sell, or hold such security, commodity, crypto currency, or other asset, nor is it considered to be investment or trading advice. These materials (including index data, ratings, credit-related analyses and data, research, valuations, model, software or other application or output therefrom) or an y part thereof ("Content") may be modified, reverse engineered, reproduced, or distributed in any form or by any means, or stored in a database or retrieval system, without the prior written permission of S&P DJI. The Content shall not be used for any unlawful or unauthorized purposes. S&P DJI and its third-party data providers and licensors (collectively "S&P Dow Jones Indices Parties") do not guarantee the accuracy, completeness, timeliness, or availability of the Content. S&P Dow Jones Indices Parties are not responsible for any errors or omissions, regardless of the cause, for the results obtained from the use of the Content. THE CONTENT IS PROVIDED ON AN "AS IS" "WHERE IS" BASIS. S&P DOW JONES INDICES PARTIES DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR USE, FREEDOM FROM BUGS, SOFTWARE ERRORS OR DEFECTS, THAT THE CONTENT'S FUNCTIONING WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR THAT THE CONTENT WILL OPERATE WITH ANY SOFTWARE OR HARDWARE CONFIGURATION. In no event shall S&P Dow Jones Indices Parties be liable to any party for any direct, incidental, exemplary, compensatory, punitive, special, or consequential damages, costs, expenses, legal fees, or losses (including, without limitation, lost income or lost profits and opportunity costs) in connection with any use of the Content even if advised of the possibility of such damages. Credit -related information and other analyses, including ratings, research and valuations are generally provided by licensors and/or affiliates of S&P Dow Jones Indices, including but not limited to S&P Global's other divisions such as S&P Global Market Intelligence. Any credit-related information and other related analyses and statements of the date they are expressed and not statements of fact. Any opinion, analyses and rating acknowledgement decisions are not recommendations to purchase, hold, or sell any securities or to make any investment decisions, and do not address the suitability of any security. S&P Dow Jones Indices does not assume any obligation to update the Content following publication in any form or format. The Content should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. S&P DJI does not act as a fiduciary or an investment advisor. While S&P DJI has obtained information from sources it believes to be reliable, S&P DJI does not perform an audit or undertake independent verification of any information it receives. S&P DJI reserves the right to vary or discontinue any index at any time for regulatory or other reasons. Various factors, including external factors beyond S&P DJI's control might necessitate material changes to indices. To the extent that regulatory authorities allow a rating agency to acknowledge in one jurisdiction a rating issued in another jurisdiction for certain regulatory purposes, S&P Global Ratings reserves the right to assign, withdraw or suspend such acknowledgement at any time and in its sole discretion. S&P Dow Jones Indices, including S&P Global Ratings, disclaim any duty whatsoever arising out of the a ssignment, withdrawal, or suspension of an acknowledgement as well as any liability for any damage alleged to have been suffered on account thereof. Affiliates of S&P Dow Jones Indices LLC, including S&P Global Ratings, reserve the right to disseminate its opinions and analyses. Public ratings and analyses. Public ratings and analyses from S&P Global Ratings are made available on its Web sites, www.standardandpoors.com (free of charge), and www.ratingsdirect.com and www.globalcreditportal.com (subscription), and may be distributed through other means, including via S&P Global Ratings publications and third-party redistributors. Additional information about our ratings fees is available at www.standardandpoors.com/usratingsfees. S&P Global keeps certain activities of its various divisions and business units separate from each other to preserve the independence and objectivity of their respective activities. As a result, certain divisions and business units of S&P Global may have information that is not available to other business units, S&P Global has established policies and procedures to maintain the confidentiality of certain nonpublic information received in connection with each analytical process, In addition, S&P Dow Jones Indices poyides a wide range of services to, or relating to, many organizations, including issuers of securities, investment advisers, broker-dealers, investment banks, other financial institutions, and financial intermediaries, and accordingly may receive fees or other economic benefits from those organizations whose securities or services they may recommend, rate, include in model portfolios, evaluate, or otherwise address. Some indices use the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS®), which was developed by, and is the exclusive property and a trademark of, S&P Global and MSCI. Neither MSCI, S&P DJI nor any other party involved in making or compiling any GICS classifications makes any express or implied warranties or representations with respect to such standard or classification (or the results to be obtained by the use thereof), and all such parties hereby expressly disclaim all warranties of originality, accuracy, completeness, merchantability, or fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any of such standard or classification. Without limiting any of the foregoing, in no event shall MSCI, S&P DJI, any of their affiliates or any third party involved in making or compiling any GICS classifications have any liability for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential or any other damages (including lost profits) even if notified of the possibility of such damages. S&P Dow Jones Indices products are governed by the terms and conditions of the agreements under which they may be provided. A license is required from S&P Dow Jones Indices to display, create derivative works of and/or distribute any product or service that uses, is based upon and/or refers to any S&P Dow Jones Indices and/or index data

S&P DJI provides indices that seek to select, exclude, and/or weight index constituents based on, but not limited to, certain environmental, social or governance (ESG) indicators, or a combination of those indicators, including the following: environmental indicators (including the efficient use of natural resources, the production of waste, greenhouse gas emissions, or impact on biodiversity); social indicators (such as, inequality and investment in human capital); governance indicators (such as sound management structures, employee relations, remuneration of staff, tax compliance, respect for human rights, anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters), specific sustainability or values-related company involvement indicators (for example, production/distribution of controversial weapons, tobacco products, or thermal coal), or controversies monitoring (including research of media outles to indicators involved in ESG-related incidents).

S&P DII ESG indices use ESG metrics and scores in the selection and/or weighting of index constituents. ESG scores or ratings seek to measure or evaluate a company's, or an asset's, performance with respect to environmental, social and corporate governance issues.

The ESG scores, ratings, and other data used in S&P DJI ESG indices is supplied directly or indirectly by third parties (note these parties can be independent affiliates of S&P Global or unaffiliated entities) so an S&P DJI ESG index's ability to reflect ESG factors depends on these third parties' data accuracy and availability.

ESG scores, ratings, and other data may be reported (meaning that the data is provided as disclosed by companies, or an asset, or as made publicly available), modelled (meaning that the data is derived using a proprietary modelling process with only proxies used in the creation of the data), or reported and modelled (meaning that the data is either a mix of reported and modelled data or is derived from the vendor using reported data /information in a proprietary scoring or determination process). ESG scores, ratings, and other data, whether from an external and/or internal sources, is based on a qualitative and judgmental assessment or sesting and of score to in the above the subjective in the data is either a mix of reported and modelled data or is derived from the vendor using reported data /information in a proprietary scoring, or other data and different ESG scores, rating, and/or data sources may use different ESG assessment or estimated in the above the subjective in the subjective in